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1 P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 

2 ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE CYNTHIA WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: 

3 Good morning, my name i s Cynthia 

4 Williams-Fordham. And t h i s i s the time and place f o r 

5 a prehearing i n the matter of A p p l i c a t i o n of Vall e y 

6 Run Water Company at docket number A-210121. 

7 I note f o r the record the appearance of 

8 Thomas J. Sniscak, Esquire and W i l l i a m T. Hawke, 

9 Esquire f o r V a l l e y Run Water Company, LLC and Louise 

10 A. Knight, Esquire f o r Superior Water Company. I ' l l 

11 give a b r i e f h i s t o r y of the proceedings so f a r . 

12 On August 18th of 2005, Val l e y Run Water 

13 Company through i t s attorney f i l e d an a p p l i c a t i o n 

14 requesting the r i g h t t o begin t o o f f e r , render, 

1 5 f u r n i s h or provide water service to the p u b l i c i n a 

1 6 p o r t i o n of Washington Township, Berks County, 

17 Pennsylvania. 

18 S p e c i f i c a l l y there were two developments, 

19 the Gehriner Farm Track and Ponds at Valley Run. The 

20 c e r t i f i c a t e of service attached t o the a p p l i c a t i o n 

21 i n d i c a t e d t h a t the O f f i c e of Consumer Advocates, O f f i c e 

22 of T r i a l S t a f f and O f f i c e of Small Business Advocate 

23 was served. By correspondence dated August 22nd of 

24 2005 the secretary of the Commission n o t i f i e d the 

25 a p p l i c a n t 1 s counsel t o serve copies of the a p p l i c a t i o n 



1 upon some other e n t i t i e s , and those e n t i t i e s 

2 were l i s t e d i n that correspondence. 

3 I n a d d i t i o n the ap p l i c a n t ' s counsel was 

4 d i r e c t e d to p u b l i s h the enclosed n o t i c e once a week 

5 f o r two consecutive weeks i n a newspaper having a 

6 general c i r c u l a t i o n i n the area involved and f i l e 

7 proof of p u b l i c a t i o n w i t h the Commission 

8 on or before September 19th of 2005. 

9 Notice t h a t the applicant f i l e d an 

10 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r C e r t i f i c a t e of Public Convenience was 

11 published i n the September 3, 2005 Pennsylvania 

12 B u l l e t i n at 35PA B u l l e t i n 4988. By correspondence 

13 dated September 20th of 2005 the ap p l i c a n t ' s counsel 

14 submitted proof t h a t the n o t i c e was published i n the 

15 Reading Eagle on Friday, September 9th and Friday, 

16 September 16, 2005. 

17 On September 19, 2005 Superior Water 

18 Company through counsel, f i l e d a p r o t e s t t o the Vall e y 

19 Run Water Company a p p l i c a t i o n f o r C e r t i f i c a t e of 

20 Public Convenience. 

21 On September 19, 2005 Superior through 

22 i t s counsel f i l e d a motion f o r proper service of 

23 a p p l i c a t i o n . On September 26th the a p p l i c a n t through 

24 i t s counsel f i l e d an answer t o the motion of Superior 

25 Water Company f o r proper service of a p p l i c a t i o n . I n 
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1 prehearing order dated November 3rd of 2005 I denied 

2 Superior's motion. The d e n i a l was based on the 

3 conclusion t h a t the a p p l i c a n t had shown th a t i t served 

4 the a p p l i c a t i o n on the appropriate e n t i t i e s . 

5 Therefore there was no need t o r e q u i r e the a p p l i c a n t 

6 to serve a d d i t i o n a l e n t i t i e s and allow them an 

7 o p p o r t u n i t y to f i l e a p r o t e s t . 

8 Since then, there have been several 

9 motions f i l e d . There was a motion t o dismiss p r o t e s t 

10 f i l e d by V a l l e y Run on October 11, 2005. Val l e y Run 

11 contends t h a t Superior lacked standing because i t s 

12 r i g h t under a c e r t i f i c a t e at docket number 

13 A-212955F0016 i s subject t o conditions t h a t have not 

14 been met. 

15 October 21st of 2005 Superior through i t s 

16 counsel f i l e d an answer to V a l l e y Run's motion to 

17 dismiss p r o t e s t . Although not w i t h -- under t h i s 

18 docket number since i t has some r e l a t i o n t o t h i s 

19 docket, there was a p e t i t i o n f o r d e c i s i o n or amendment 

20 of Superior's c e r t i f i c a t e r i g h t s f i l e d on October 11th 

21 of 2005; V a l l e y Run asked t h a t the granted a u t h o r i t y 

22 be rescinded or amended and c l a r i f i e d t o confirm t h a t 

23 Superior's r i g h t s are not mature. 

24 On October 31st of 2005 Superior through 

25 i t s counsel f i l e d an answer to t h a t p e t i t i o n . There 

0 
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1 i s a motion t o d i s m i s s the p e t i t i o n o f V a l l e y Run f o r 

2 l a c k o f s t a n d i n g and t h a t i s a l s o on t h e o t h e r docket 

3 number A-212955F0016. That was f i l e d by S u p e r i o r 

4 t h r o u g h i t s c o u n s e l on October 31st o f 2005, and on 

5 November 14th o f 2005 V a l l e y Run t h r o u g h i t s c o u n s e l 

6 f i l e d an answer t o t h a t m o t i o n . 

7 There i s a m o t i o n t o compel d i s c o v e r y and 

8 I don't b e l i e v e I have a copy o f t h a t m o t i o n , 

9 Ms. K n i g h t . And t h e n on November 14th t h e r e was an 

10 answer t o t h e m o t i o n t o compel d i s c o v e r y . On November 

11 16th V a l l e y Run f i l e d a m o t i o n f o r c e r t i f i c a t i o n o f a 

12 m a t e r i a l q u e s t i o n and an answer was f i l e d on November 

13 21st by S u p e r i o r . 

14 Now, t h e p a r t i e s have s u b m i t t e d 

15 p r e h e a r i n g memoranda today, and some o t h e r f i l i n g s a re 

16 l i s t e d i n those p r e h e a r i n g memorandum but I would ask 

17 t h e coun s e l t o add t h a t t o the r e c o r d . 

18 Mr. Sniscak, you can proceed w i t h your --

19 MR. SNISCAK: We had f i l e d a motion I 

20 b e l i e v e i t was and l e t me get the d a t e o f i t -- on 

21 November 16th a s k i n g Your Honor t o e x e r c i s e your 

22 powers under t h e 52PA code s e c t i o n 15.305(a)1 t o 

23 c e r t i f y a m a t e r i a l q u e s t i o n t o t h e Commission, namely 

24 t h e m o t i o n t o d i s m i s s t h e i s s u e i s up t o t h e 

25 Commission i t s e l f . So i t had e s s e n t i a l l y a l l t h r e e 
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1 pleadings or p e t i t i o n s before due to the somewhat 

2 i n t e r r e l a t e d nature p e r t a i n i n g t o the issue of 

3 standing. Subsequent t o t h a t , we had received dated 

4 today -- w e l l , your Honor, Ms. Knight c e r t a i n l y can 

5 speak t o what they f i l e d . So t h a t concludes our 

6 l a t e s t f i l i n g . Your Honor. 

7 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Thank you. 

8 MS. KNIGHT: Yes, Your Honor. I n an 

9 e f f o r t t o have no outstanding matters by the time of 

10 t h i s prehearing conference, we d i d get a motion 

11 assembled and f i l e d today which i s not only an answer 

12 t o the motion of Valle y Run f o r c e r t i f i c a t i o n of the 

13 m a t e r i a l question, but also a motion t o consolidate an 

14 a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t my c l i e n t , Superior, f i l e d on 

15 November 7th f o r seeking, a d d i t i o n a l t e r r i t o r y , service 

16 t e r r i t o r y i n Washington Township, as w e l l as t e r r i t o r y 

17 i n Colebrookdale Township which i s adjacent t o 

18 Washington Township. 

1 9 That a p p l i c a t i o n i s docketed at 

20 A-212955F0017. So I guess we s t i l l do have one 

21 outstanding motion t h a t V a l l e y Run has not had an 

22 o p p o r t u n i t y t o respond t o . 

23 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Now, i n f i l i n g 

24 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n the service t e r r i t o r y encompasses the 

25 t e r r i t o r y t h a t V a l l e y Run i s requesting. 
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1 MS. KNIGHT: I t i s a subset o f t h e t o t a l 

2 s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y S u p e r i o r i s s e e k i n g ; t h a t 1s c o r r e c t . 

3 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: What i s t h e date 

4 f o r p r o t e s t t o be f i l e d ? 

5 MS. KNIGHT: I thou g h t i t would be 

6 p u b l i s h e d i n t h e B u l l e t i n on F r i d a y b u t i t wasn't and 

7 I had n o t y e t r e c e i v e d a l e t t e r from S e c r e t a r y 

8 NcNaulty d i r e c t i n g s e r v i c e and p u b l i c a t i o n . However, 

9 f o l l o w i n g t h e r e g u l a t i o n a t 52 PA code 3501 S u p e r i o r 

10 d i d f i l e a copy o f i t on a l l m u n i c i p a l e n t i t i e s and 

11 a u t h o r i t i e s and e x i s t i n g s e r v i c e p r o v i d e r s a d j a c e n t t o 

12 the s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y w i t h i n a m i l e . So i t has been 

13 se r v e d on a l l those e n t i t i e s . However, t h e r e has been 

14 no newspaper p u b l i c a t i o n . 

15 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I haven't had a 

16 chance t o l o o k a t Ms. K n i g h t ' s response t o t h e m o t i o n 

17 t o c e r t i f y a m a t e r i a l q u e s t i o n . But I a l s o know t h a t 

18 even though t h e a p p l i c a n t has asked f o r t h a t m o t i o n , 

19 t h a t t h e y have a l s o asked f o r us t o go f o r w a r d w i t h 

20 s e t t i n g up a h e a r i n g and s e t t i n g a p r o c e d u r a l schedule 

21 i n t h i s m a t t e r ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

22 MR. SNISCAK: That's c o r r e c t , your Honor. 

23 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: And I n o t i c e d 

24 t h a t i n b o t h o f the p r e h e a r i n g o r d e r p r e h e a r i n g 

25 memoranda t h a t t h e p o t e n t i a l w i t n e s s e s have been 



1 0 

1 l i s t e d and a proposed schedule. With respect t o the 

2 applicant there are four witnesses l i s t e d , and w i t h 

3 respect t o the p r o t e s t a n t there are four w i t h the l a s t 

4 one being a DEP witness t h a t ' s not i d e n t i f i e d at t h i s 

5 p o i n t . 

6 MS. KNIGHT: That's c o r r e c t . 

7 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: With respect t o 

8 the proposed schedule there are d i f f e r e n c e s . The 

9 schedule f o r the a p p l i c a n t does not have w r i t t e n 

10 testimony but, o r a l presentations and then b r i e f i n g 

11 and the time l i n e s are very d i f f e r e n t . Does the 

12 app l i c a n t want to have w r i t t e n testimony or are you 

13 j u s t t h i n k i n g t h a t o r a l testimony would be s u f f i c i e n t ? 

14 MR. SNISCAK: Your Honor, our concern i s 

15 w i t h the time l i n e . And again I don't want to get up 

16 on a soap box but I t h i n k i t may be h e l p f u l t o your 

17 Honor and the Commission to know the reasons behind 

18 why we 1 re asking t h a t t h i s case be heard sooner r a t h e r 

19 than l a t e r . 

20 F i r s t of a l l , we've l a r g e l y been ham 

21 strung and hampered by t h i s p r o t e s t r e l a t i v e t o the 

22 f a l l c o n s t r u c t i o n season. While t h i s i s hanging out 

23 there, i t ' s almost -- i t ' s very d i f f i c u l t t o f i n a l i z e 

24 arrangements necessary t o get these developments up 

2 5 and running. 
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1 1 

1 The delay i s c o s t i n g not only time and 

2 the d i s t r a c t i o n but also expense. Our goal would be 

3 t h a t we would be able to get the e a r l i e s t possible 

4 a v a i l a b l e c o n s t r u c t i o n season, which namely i n our 

5 prehearing memoranda i d e n t i f i e s t h a t having a de c i s i o n 

6 up or down say by the beginning of A p r i l , somewhere i n 

7 th a t general v i c i n i t y . 

8 Consequently, we c e r t a i n l y do not t h i n k 

9 t h a t the schedule t h a t the p r o t e s t a n t i s proposing not 

10 to mention t h e i r attempting now to overlay and lump i n 

11 yet another a p p l i c a t i o n proceeding t h a t could i n v o l v e 

12 a l o t of other a d d i t i o n a l players there are other 

13 townships involved -- we don't know who's going t o 

14 m a t e r i a l i z e i n those. That's going to, i n our opinion) 

15 slow down the whole process. 

16 We 1 re ready t o go. We have our sewer .-

17 We have -- according t o our c l i e n t s we have the sewer. 

18 We have the water t o serve i n i t i a l demands. Our 

19 opponents we be l i e v e are not i n th a t p o s i t i o n . They 

20 don't have water yet. They don't have permits. While 

21 they may be working on t h i n g s , t h a t ' s f i n e . But 

22 things take time. There has to be I t h i n k --

23 admittedly i n one of t h e i r pleadings t h e i r developer 

24 has to do an erosion and sedimentation f i l i n g w i t h an 

25 environmental agency and get t h a t approved before 
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1 they're good to go. 

2 So consequently we would l i k e t o put t h i s 

3 on the f a s t e s t reasonable t r a c k . I f we h i t t h a t 

4 deadline, and they want to use p r e f i l e d testimony, 

5 t h a t ' s f i n e w i t h us too. Or we can do i t o r a l l y . We 

6 can c e r t a i n l y as i n a court of law, agree t h a t any 

7 e x h i b i t s or any t e c h n i c a l s t u f f be produced i n advance 

8 of those hearings so t h a t we're not p u l l i n g d i r e c t 

9 e x h i b i t s out of a magic box and doing Perry Mason 

10 s u r p r i s e s ; t h a t ' s not our i n t e n t by asking f o r o r a l 

11 hearings. 

1 2 And I also t h i n k a t t e n d i n g to any 

13 schedule we c e r t a i n l y , again by d e l v i n g i n t o the 

14 schedule we1 re not conceding any of the p o i n t s on our 

15 pending motions but we c e r t a i n l y would consider 

16 c u t t i n g down or shortening the response times as to 

1 7 reasonable r e l a t i v e discovery. 

18 I've been i n a number of proceedings t h a t 

19 the Commission has been i n on a r e l a t i v e l y short time 

20 t r a c k and one of the r u l e s i s you almost h a l f the 

21 response time. And i f you can't, you t r y to work i t 

22 out w i t h counsel, but i f t h a t doesn't work, then you 

23 take i t to the judge. But i t ' s work. And i t ' s much 

24 more complicated w i t h many, many more p a r t i e s . 

25 And, f o r example, t a l k i n g w i t h regards to 



1 3 

1 telecommunications stock, they have always worked t h a t 

2 way. So i t can be done. But again we f e e l f o r the 

3 reasons we s t a t e d i n our motion t h a t we're ready to 

4 go. I t ' s going t o be an economic catastrophe f o r the 

5 developers of the company, i f i t ' s going to take a 

6 year, a year and a h a l f f o r t h i s t h i n g t o run to 

7 ground or even l a t e i n the summer. So t h a t ' s the 

8 background of our request. 

9 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Ms. Knight. 

10 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, three p o i n t s . 

1 1 One i s t h a t I hear the plea of urgency from opposing 

12 counsel, but as I noted i n my answer t o t h e i r motion 

13 f o r c e r t i f i c a t i o n , when they f i l e d t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n 

14 was dependent on them. They had apparently-- -according 

15 to the a p p l i c a t i o n t h e i r DEP permit was issued on 

16 March 18, 2004. I'm c e r t a i n l y not i n a p o s i t i o n t o 

17 know what t h e i r t i m i n g of t h i s p r o j e c t was. But I 

18 believe s o r t of c r e a t i n g your own problem i s not an 

19 argument f o r rushing proceedings through t h a t have 

20 s u b s t a n t i a l p u b l i c s i g n i f i c a n c e . 

21 My c l i e n t believes t h a t i t s p r o t e s t i s 

22 e n t i r e l y proper, t h a t i t should have f u l l due process 

23 r i g h t s . But i t i s prepared to move forward. And we 

24 can c e r t a i n l y advance the schedule t h a t I suggested. 

25 I assumed t h a t we wanted to prepare testimony but we 

o 
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1 don't have to prepare testimony. 

2 However, I would note t h a t we promulgated 

3 discovery q u i c k l y so th a t we could expedite the 

4 proceeding and a l l t h a t I have on my desk r i g h t now 

5 are objections t o discovery. So notwithstanding 

6 Mr. Sniscak 1s comments, we don 11 have any answers to 

7 discovery t h a t was f i l e d very promptly. So t h a t being 

8 said we c e r t a i n l y can negotiate the schedule. I f we 

9 want t o expedite discovery, t h a t ' s f i n e . 

10 And we can c e r t a i n l y then move up --

1 1 h o p e f u l l y move up the date f o r c l o s i n g discovery and 

12 we would work out any disagreements we have. I t h i n k 

1 3 t h a t we could work them out or i f we need a conference 

14 w i t h you I t h i n k t h a t should c e r t a i n l y be enough i f we 

15 can forego the time of the formal motions t o compel 

16 back and f o r t h . And yes we would w i l l i n g t o go 

17 without prepared testimony. 

18 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Now, i n terms of 

19 the time l i n e proposed by the appl i c a n t I know t h a t I 

20 have been assigned the Aqua r a t e case and I was t r y i n g 

21 t o see where t h a t was, and I don't know e x a c t l y . I 

22 know t h a t there has been a f i l i n g . And i t seems t h a t 

23 the suspension date t h a t they proposed i s i n January. 

24 I f i t was suspended f o r seven months, then we're 

25 t a l k i n g about i n t o July, and c l o s i n g the record the 
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1 beginning of March. So i n terms of p u b l i c i n p u t 

2 hearings and the hearings f o r t h a t matter I'm not 

3 sure. 

4 So i f we set something today, we might 

5 have t o change i t around a l i t t l e b i t depending on 

6 t h a t proceeding. But tha t ' s the only other proceeding 

7 t h a t I have t h a t I t h i n k would i n t e r f e r e w i t h any 

8 scheduling t h a t we might set. 

9 MS. KNIGHT: I guess the only other 

10 comment I would have i s obviously December i s the 

1 1 holidays and things tend t o take a l i t t l e b i t longer 

12 than normal. But i f we could close discovery say the 

1 3 f i r s t week i n January, and perhaps r i g h t now we can 

14 t a l k about -- I do have a copy of the motion t o 

15 compel, your Honor. I t does show t h a t you were 

16 served. I don't know why you di d n ' t get a copy. 

17 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I was lo o k i n g 

18 through my documents and I di d n ' t see i t . 

19 MS. KNIGHT: That' my only copy but you 

20 can have i t . 

21 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I ' l l make sure 

22 t h a t --

23 MS. KNIGHT: Maybe we can work through 

24 t h a t r i g h t now and not through expedited 

25 MR. SNISCAK: I f I can ask a 
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1 c l a r i f i c a t i o n . What does your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n propose? 

2 Do you mean t h e l a s t d ate f o r g e t t i n g them out or t h e 

3 l a s t d a t e f o r answering them? 

4 MS. KNIGHT: For answering them. Of 

5 course, I don't have -- we don't have a n y t h i n g f r o m 

6 you y e t b u t we would make every e f f o r t t o --

7 MR. SNISCAK: We're h o p i n g we never have 

8 t o ask you any q u e s t i o n s . 

9 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So we're t a l k i n g 

10 about t h e p r o p o s a l from t h e a p p l i c a n t i s December 31st 

11 which i s t h e --

12 MS. KNIGHT: That's a l i t t l e t o u g h 

13 because o f t h e h o l i d a y s . 

14 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: That's on a 

1 5 Saturday. 

16 MS. KNIGHT: So i f we c o u l d move i t t o 

17 t he f i r s t week o f January. 

18 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: R i g h t . The 31st 

19 i s a Saturday. The h o l i d a y January 1 s t i s on a 

20 Sunday. So t h e 2nd i s a l s o a h o l i d a y . So are we 

21 t a l k i n g about moving i t t o t h a t F r i d a y o f t h e 6th? So 

22 t h e c l o s e o f d i s c o v e r y would be January 6 t h . 

23 MR. SNISCAK: R i g h t . 

24 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Even i f you 

25 don't have w r i t t e n t e s t i m o n y , we would a t l e a s t have 



9 

1 7 

1 exchange of e x h i b i t s . So what time l i n e are we 

2 t a l k i n g about w i t h t h a t ? Are we t a l k i n g about two 

3 weeks a f t e r close of discovery f o r everything t o be 

4 submitted? 

5 MR. SNISCAK: I'm not sure we need t h a t 

6 much time, your Honor. I t h i n k by then we should have 

7 a p r e t t y good handle on what e x h i b i t s so t o speak are 

8 going t o be associated w i t h the d i r e c t , or I c a l l i t 

9 the p r o t e s t a n t ' s response t o testimony. 

10 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So maybe 7 days? 

11 MR. SNISCAK: Yes. Seems to me by the 

12 13th, we ought t o --

13 MS. KNIGHT: I t h i n k t h a t ' s doable. And 

14 the proposal o r i g i n a l l y had been f o r the 12th and 13th 

15 t o be the o r a l p r e s e n t a t i o n of d i r e c t and pr o t e s t a n t ' s 

16 response. So do you want t o make t h a t January 19th 

17 and 20th? 

18 MR. SNISCAK: Yes, your Honor. 

19 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So Thursday, 

20 January 19th and Friday, January 20th w i l l be the o r a l 

21 p r e s e n t a t i o n of applic a n t ' s d i r e c t and pr o t e s t a n t ' s 

22 response. And then the 26th and the 27th would be the 

23 o r a l p r e s e n t a t i o n of appl i c a n t ' s r e b u t t a l . Would you 

24 l i k e another date? 

25 MR. SNISCAK: No, your Honor. We were 
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1 j u s t t a l k i n g about whether we need a c t u a l l y two days 

2 but we p r o b a b l y out o f abundance o f c a u t i o n --

3 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: To schedule i t ? 

4 MR. SNISCAK: Yes. And under t h e 

5 schedule t h e main b r i e f s were t o be due w i t h i n a week 

6 o f t h a t . I note t h a t you would be a s k i n g f o r 

7 e x p e d i t e d t r a n s c r i p t s b ut do you want t o g i v e 

8 y o u r s e l v e s more t h a n a week? 

9 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, I need more t h a n 

10 two days t o w r i t e a b r i e f . I t can t a k e t h r e e days t o 

11 t u r n around even an e x p e d i t e d t r a n s c r i p t . 

12 MR. SNISCAK: Can we go w i t h l i k e t h e 

13 14th? 

14 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: The 14th o f — 

15 MR. SNISCAK: February. I t * s V a l e n t i n e ' s 

16 Day. 

17 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: That's a 

18 Tuesday. The 14th i s a Tuesday. 

19 MR. SNISCAK: A c t u a l l y , I'm s o r r y , Your 

20 Honor, you're r i g h t . I have one o f those c a l e n d a r s 

21 t h a t s t a r t s w i t h Monday the 13th . 

22 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: That would be 

23 Monday the 13th o f February? 

24 MR. SNISCAK: R i g h t . 

25 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, we have t he mid 

o 
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1 w i n t e r meeting scheduled. Can we make i t the 15th? 

2 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Okay. Friday 

3 the 24th or Monday the 25th. 

4 MR. SNISCAK: Friday the 24th. 

5 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: And w i t h the 

6 schedule we have set we close discovery on Friday, 

7 January 6, 2006, and have a l l e x h i b i t s and other 

8 documents t h a t we need by January 13th which i s also a 

9 Friday. The o r a l p r e s e n t a t i o n would be on Thursday, 

10 January 19th and Friday, January 20th. The 

11 appl i c a n t ' s r e b u t t a l would be January 26th and i f 

12 necessary the 27th. The main b r i e f s would be f i l e d 

13 February 15th and the r e p l y b r i e f s February 24th. I s 

1 4 t h a t acceptable? 

15 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, t h a t ' s 

16 acceptable contingent upon working out the obj e c t i o n s 

17 t o t h a t discovery i f we can do t h a t w i t h i n a 

18 reasonable time period. 

19 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So we have the 

20 motion t o compel and the other t h i n g i s we also have 

21 the c e r t i f i c a t i o n , the motion f o r c e r t i f i c a t i o n . So 

2 2 we do have other things working on the same t r a c k 

23 which might vary the schedule, but so f a r t h a t ' s the 

24 schedule t h a t we have proposed. 

25 MR. SNISCAK: Yes, your Honor. 



20 

1 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Now, w i t h 

2 respect t o discovery disputes, I note t h a t the 

3 applicants have i n d i c a t e d they do not be l i e v e t h a t the 

4 p r o t e s t a n t s have standing; t h e r e f o r e at t h i s p o i n t you 

5 do not want t o respond t o discovery. I can't say 

6 ex a c t l y when the motion to c e r t i f y t h a t whole t r a c k , I 

7 can't say when th a t would be completed. I f t h a t ' s not 

8 completed w i t h i n a t i m e l y manner, then t h a t ' s going t o 

9 change the schedule. The appl i c a n t i s s t i l l w a i t i n g 

I 0 f o r the dec i s i o n before responding t o discovery. 

I I MR. SNISCAK: I'm sorry, your Honor. I'm -• 

12 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Do you s t i l l 

1 3 want t o wait f o r e i t h e r the Commission t o r u l e or my 

14 r u l i n g before you respond t o the discovery at a l l ? 

15 MR. SNISCAK: That would be our 

16 preference, your Honor. Obviously i f there i s 

17 slippage i n terms of the Commission r u l i n g on the 

18 p r e l i m i n a r y or summary type r e s o l u t i o n of the matter, 

19 t h a t may a f f e c t discovery. Unfortunately none of us 

20 have a c r y s t a l b a l l t o l e t you know when the 

21 Commission i s going to be i n a p o s i t i o n to r u l e on 

22 these things and we understand your Honor has other 

23 cases too, so we're hoping you won't have t o reset the 

24 schedule. And we would c e r t a i n l y use our best e f f o r t s 

25 to do a quick turnaround i n the discovery request. 
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1 And perhaps even at t h a t j u n c t u r e , Your 

2 Honor, instead of e i t h e r t a k i n g your time t o r u l e on 

3 the formal motions, we can do a quick conference c a l l 

4 on some of the p o i n t s . And counsel and I c e r t a i n l y 

5 would be amenable t o t r y to stay w i t h i n the scope or 

6 scale issues or obj ections themselves w i t h opposing 

7 counsel i f we s t a r t bumping up against the edge of the 

8 schedule. 

9 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, l e t me 

10 understand t h i s . We've j u s t agreed t o an expedited 

11 schedule but they're maintaining t h e i r p o s i t i o n 

12 they're not going t o answer t h e i r b r i e f on the basis --

13 remember they have a p e t i t i o n f i l e d i n f r o n t of the 

14 Commission f o r decision, but i t ' s based on disputed 

15 f a c t s . There's not going t o be a f i n a l r e s o l u t i o n of 

16 t h a t even i f the Commission takes i t up promptly. 

17 MR. SNISCAK: Well 

18 MS. KNIGHT: And second of a l l , I f i l e d 

19 an answer t o t h e i r motion f o r c e r t i f i c a t i o n . 

20 According t o my reading of the r e g u l a t i o n s , they don't 

21 even have grounds t o ask f o r one because there's no 

22 de c i s i o n of yours t h a t they're appealing and yet we're 

23 going t o hold up the whole process because of a l l 

24 these speculative outcomes. I don't agree w i t h the 

25 schedule i f t h a t ' s the p o s i t i o n they're going t o take. 
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1 MR. SNISCAK: Your Honor, i f I can j u s t 

2 address those two p o i n t s . F i r s t of a l l , r e l a t i v e t o 

3 any a p p l i c a t i o n there's a whole universe of issues at 

4 t h i s p o i n t . And j u s t because you r a i s e issues doesn't 

5 mean you have standing. A l o t of issues t h a t Superior 

6 has r a i s e d and said are m a t e r i a l are r e a l l y issues 

7 t h a t h i s t o r i c a l l y the Commission's s t a f f reviews, 

8 considers and then makes a recommendation t o the 

9 Commission t o grant the a p p l i c a t i o n , deny the 

10 a p p l i c a t i o n or grant a c o n d i t i o n . 

1 1 The s a l i e n t m a t e r i a l f a c t s here are not 

12 i n dispute. They don't have water. They don't have 

13 the permits. The l e g a l issue which again prompted our 

14 asking Your Honor t o c e r t i f y through the Commission i s 

15 not because we don't have confidence i n Your Honor's 

16 a b i l i t y t o r e v i s e i t , but the Commission wrote the 

17 order g r a n t i n g them t h e i r r i g h t s upon which they are 

1 8 basing t h e i r standing. 

19 We're saying t h e i r r i g h t s are completely 

20 i n t e r i m , t e n t a t i v e . They have not matured because the 

21 conditions of g e t t i n g these permits has not occurred 

22 already. So they have no standings there. 

23 And we f e e l t h a t the Commission i s i n the 

24 best p o s i t i o n t o r u l e upon t h a t issue. Because 

25 otherwise i t ' s conceiveable t h a t we could have the 
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1 Commission r u l i n g one way on the p e t i t i o n f o r the 

2 d e c i s i o n and you r u l i n g another i n t e r p r e t i n g the very 

3 same p r o v i s i o n . 

4 And again reasonable warrants i n two 

5 p r o v i s i o n s are d i f f e r e n t l y i n the eyes of the 

6 beholder. Here we thought the common e f f i c i e n c y f o r 

7 everybody would c e r t a i n l y be advanced by having t h a t 

8 go on at the Commission's stage. 

9 On the other hand, there i s go guarantee 

10 t h a t the Commission i s going t o act or react w i t h i n a 

11 set p e r i o d of time. We are w i l l i n g t o go forward. 

12 I n p a r t i c u l a r there i s one area of 

13 discovery t h a t we are s e n s i t i v e t o and we c e r t a i n l y 

14 need to decide while we're i n the process of 

15 f i n a l i z i n g the d e t a i l s of the developer. I n one of 

16 the responsive pleadings they say we want t o negotiate 

17 w i t h you. We've objected t o t h a t f o r obvious reasons, 

18 t h a t t h i s i s p r i v i l e g e d and c o n f i d e n t i a l at t h a t p o i n t 

19 t o negotiate i t . We don't need somebody who wants t o - -

20 we f e e l have no r e a l standing t o come i n arguing t h a t 

21 very important d e t a i l and using t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

22 negotiate against us. 

23 However, i f we can resolve those t h i n g s , 

24 when those t h i n g s are f i n a l i z e d , we'11 produce i t t o 

25 them. We'11 do i t and we're hoping t h a t t h a t w i l l be 

o 
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1 done r e l a t i v e l y q u i c k l y . 

2 A l o t of the other s t u f f had scope and 

3 scale relevance obj ections also. Quite f r a n k l y we 

4 keep r e f e r r i n g t o the po i n t t h a t a l l these issues 

5 they've r a i s e d , the c e r t i f i c a t i o n issues, they're 

6 r e a l l y ones the s t a f f can handle. And again one of 

7 the poin t s i n our motion t o dismiss we're not asking 

8 i f our motion t o dismiss i s granted, t h a t you give us 

9 our c e r t i f i c a t e r i g h t s . We're not asking t h a t at a l l . 

10 We're j u s t asking t h a t Your Honor understand as p a r t 

1 1 of our motion t o dismiss what should happen i s the 

12 matter be r e f e r r e d back to modified procedure. 

1 3 Which means t h a t the various d i v i s i o n s of 

14 the Commission w i l l ask us the questions and work w i t h 

15 us to go through t o get i t j u s t l i k e i t ' s done i n any 

16 other non-contested a p p l i c a t i o n . And then come the 

17 end of the day, t h e y ' l l say you're v i a b l e . You meet 

18 a l l these other standards. We t h i n k you can make a go 

19 at i t . 

20 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, i n response, I 

21 f i n d i t i r o n i c t h a t they are cla i m i n g t h a t we lack 

22 standing t o p r o t e s t the a p p l i c a t i o n when the basis on 

23 which we f i l e d the motion t o dismiss t h e i r p e t i t i o n i s 

24 c l e a r l y l a c k i n g standing. They weren't a p a r t y t o the 

25 proceeding. 
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1 They have no palpable standing t o ask the 

2 Commission to resc i n d the a p p l i c a t i o n . I would also 

3 note they can c a l l i t s p e c u l a t i v e . They can c a l l i t 

4 c o n d i t i o n a l . I have a C e r t i f i c a t e of Public 

5 Convenience t o serve t e r r i t o r y i n Washington Township. 

6 I t doesn't have a s i n g l e c o n d i t i o n on i t . So they can 

7 c a l l i t whatever they want t o c a l l i t . I t ' s a 

8 C e r t i f i c a t e of Public Convenience t h a t ' s been issued 

9 by the Commission. 

10 So I don't q u i t e understand how we're 

11 g e t t i n g the c a r t before the horse here. They're 

12 saying, oh j u s t send our a p p l i c a t i o n back because 

13 these people shouldn't have any r i g h t t o comment. You 

14 could say t h a t about many p r o t e s t a n t s t o a p p l i c a t i o n s 

15 but there are due process r i g h t s . My c l i e n t claims t o 

16 have standing. I f i t has standing, i t has due process 

17 r i g h t s t o r a i s e the issues at a hearing t h a t are 

18 m a t e r i a l t o t h a t a p p l i c a t i o n , which i s the need f o r 

19 i t . 

20 MR. SNISCAK: Well, Your Honor, i t ' s not 

21 by any means the standard i f they s a i d meaning the 

22 p r o t e s t a n t i t s e l f , they claimed t h a t they had a d i r e c t 

23 immediate and s u b s t a n t i a l i n t e r e s t . They have none o f 

24 those. They have no water. They have not a s i n g l e 

25 customer i n Berks County. They have not a s i n g l e 
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1 customer i n Washington Township. They have nothing 

2 but t e n t a t i v e agreement r i g h t s t h a t they have not 

3 perfected. 

4 And t h a t ' s the issue r e a l l y the 

5 Commission has the best i n t e r e s t t o determine. The 

6 r e g u l a t i o n s themselves say you have t o show proof t h a t 

7 you have water and a permit. They're t r y i n g t o act 

8 l i k e t h a t doesn't say t h a t i n order t o persuade. 

9 We have standing. They have based t h e i r 

10 p r o t e s t on t h i s c e r t i f i c a t i o n on those r i g h t s . Those 

11 r i g h t s i n our opinion are not per f e c t e d . That i s our 

1 2 l e g a l argument. 

13 We c e r t a i n l y have an i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

14 proceeding. We have an i n t e r e s t at a minimum i n the 

15 Commission c l a r i f y i n g t h a t you can't exercise your 

16 r i g h t s , and you have no r i g h t s unless and u n t i l you 

17 get the permit and a l l those other things t h a t we 

18 conditioned. Their a p p l i c a t i o n i t s e l f s p e c i f i c a l l y 

19 states on t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n , the Commission granted 

20 t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n . Their a p p l i c a t i o n s t a t e s t h a t they 

21 agree th a t t h e i r c e r t i f i c a t e should be conditioned 

2 2 upon o b t a i n i n g the DRBC permit. 

23 The way t h a t permit process works i s you 

24 have t o get the s t a t e permit f i r s t , the DEP permit. 

25 I f they don't have your DRBC, they don't have t h e i r 
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1 DEP. They have nothing. No water, no customers and 

2 they're using t h a t t o boot s t r a p an o p p o s i t i o n to us 

3 when we have our DEP permit and beside we don't need a 

4 DOBC permit because we are under the th r e s h o l d . They 

5 have more other water operations than we do. We have 

6 sewage. We have a l l those t h i n g s . We'll work out 

7 those issues w i t h s t a f f . I f we can't prove those w i t h 

8 s t a f f , we don't deserve to be c e r t i f i e d . I t ' s as 

9 simple as t h a t . But t o say t h a t we don't have 

10 standing i n t h a t case and we don't have an i n t e r e s t , 

11 we d i d n ' t p i c k a f i g h t here. They prot e s t e d us. They 

12 f i r e d the f i r s t v o l l e y . 

1 3 We had to evoke the basis of t h e i r 

14 standing on t h a t . S i m i l a r l y t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n i s one 

15 which we have not yet had any o p p o r t u n i t y t o respond 

16 to a meaningful o p p o r t u n i t y , and again I would l i k e t o 

17 reserve our r i g h t t o f u l l y respond. 

18 But secondly, t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n i s i n an 

19 area where the two developers at issue don't want f o r 

20 service, where there i s already a DPT per m i t t e d 

21 supply. They have no supply. What are they going t o 

22 do, d u p l i c a t e w e l l supply on t h a t p r o p e r t y . The 

23 Commission i s not going to go f o r t h a t . This whole 

24 t h i n g i s smoking m i r r o r s . I t ' s about l o c k i n g up f o r a . 

2 5 r a i n y day f u t u r e t e r r i t o r y . We're ready, we're 
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1 w i l l i n g , we're able t o c o n s t r u c t . We're ready t o go. 

2 We s h o u l d be a b l e t o do t h a t . 

3 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I un d e r s t a n d t h e 

4 arguments o f b o t h s i d e s . There are some i s s u e s t h a t I 

5 w i l l be a b l e t o r e s o l v e or have t h e a u t h o r i t y t o do 

6 so - There are some i s s u e s t h a t I cannot r e s o l v e t h a t 

7 have been s t a t e d by t h e p a r t i e s . Since t h e Commission 

8 has a l r e a d y i s s u e d an o r d e r , I cannot revoke an o r d e r 

9 or change an o r d e r t h a t has a l r e a d y been i s s u e d by the 

10 Commission. 

11 So what I w i l l do a f t e r today's h e a r i n g 

12 i s l o o k a t e v e r y t h i n g t h a t has been s u b m i t t e d and make 

13 a r u l i n g on e x a c t l y what t h e next s t e p s are g o i n g t o 

14 be i n terms o f c e r t i f i c a t i o n , i n terms o f moving 

15 f o r w a r d . I w i l l send out an o r d e r . I'm not sure 

16 whether I'm g o i n g t o send two s e p a r a t e o r d e r s because 

17 we do have an o r d e r w i t h t h e procedures scheduled. 

18 N o r m a l l y t h a t ' s a sep a r a t e o r d e r t h a t I send b u t I 

19 w i l l make a d e t e r m i n a t i o n as t o how I'm g o i n g t o send 

20 i t o u t , whether i t be two c e r t i f i c a t i o n s o r n o t . 

21 MR. SNISCAK: Your Honor, a couple o f 

22 c l a r i f i c a t i o n p o i n t s . We w i l l s h o r t e n t he answer 

23 p e r i o d f o r t h i s l a t e s t m o t i o n i f we can have l e a v e 

24 f r o m Your Honor t o f i l e our response by t h i s F r i d a y 

25 j u s t because we have not y e t had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o 
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1 respond t o t h i s motion to consolidate, t h a t ' s attached 

2 t o the answer t o our motion t o c e r t i f y . 

3 They f i l e d a separate as I understand i t 

4 motion t o consolidate. Now, a couple of issues there. 

5 I'm not sure --

6 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Before you s t a r t • 

7 MR. SNISCAK: i f t h a t ' s something t h a t 

8 Your Honor --

9 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Right. That's 

10 the other t h i n g I was going t o say. Because t h a t ' s 

1 1 why I asked Ms. Knight what was the procedural posture 

12 of t h a t . Because I have not been assigned t h a t case. 

13 I have not seen t h a t . And u n t i l i t ' s published i n the 

14 Pennsylvania B u l l e t i n and u n t i l there i s a p r o t e s t , 

15 i t ' s not assigned t o the o f f i c e of A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Law 

16 Judge. 

17 MS. KNIGHT: That was the a n t i c i p a t e d 

18 p r o t e s t being f i l e d , Your Honor, and I wanted t o give 

19 everyone t i m e l y n o t i c e of being here. 

20 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So by Friday --

21 MR. SNISCAK: Well, your Honor, I take i t 

22 back. I f o r g o t t h a t i t i s Thanksgiving and I'm 

23 t h i n k i n g work mode and not p r a c t i c a l , but w e ' l l 

24 endeavor to get th a t t o whoever decides i t as soon as 

25 we reasonably can. Obviously we have to take a look 
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1 at i t and research i t . 

2 The other question i s can you c e r t i f y i t . 

3 The regs does not mention anywhere t h a t you need t o 

4 r u l e on something f i r s t n e c essarily. This i s n 1 t a 

5 discovery dispute. This i s a procedural dispute. And 

6 i f you look at the secti o n i t ' s 5.305; i t doesn't 

7 mention any p r i o r steps. Again I ' l l have t o take a 

8 look at i t . But I do know t h a t i n some of the 

9 telecommunications proceedings where procedural issues 

I 0 came up or schedules or questions sua sponte by judges 

I I they have been c e r t i f i e d by the Commission where i t 

12 makes sense. So we're not we r e s p e c t f u l l y disagree 

13 w i t h t h a t procedural argument. 

14 I'm t r y i n g t o t h i n k -- I t h i n k then we 

15 w i l l f i l e t h a t other answer. Would you l i k e a copy of 

16 th a t answer even though we're not sure -- even though 

17 we t h i n k the Commission or some e n t i t y of the 

18 Commission w i l l be deciding i t , would you want to 

19 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Yes, to make the 

20 record t h a t I have. 

21 MR. SNISCAK: Okay. 

22 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Ms. Knight. 

23 MS. KNIGHT: Two f i n a l issues. You s t i l l 

24 haven't given a clear -- I say I s t i l l have a question 

25 outstanding on discovery. Are they going t o be -- I 

o 
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1 am w i l l i n g t o p u t our q u e s t i o n s about t h e 

2 n e g o t i a t i o n s , o r a l communications between V a l l e y Run 

3 and Mr. O r t e l l i on h o l d , b u t I t h i n k t h e r e are o t h e r 

4 grounds f o r n o t w a n t i n g t o answer d i s c o v e r y t h a t t h e y 

5 have a pending motion t o d i s m i s s . You can't have i t 

6 b o t h ways. E i t h e r t h e y want t o w a i t and see what t h e 

7 outcome i s and t h e n we f a s h i o n i t i f t h e y ' r e 

8 u n s u c c e s s f u l . 

9 Then we f a s h i o n a h e a r i n g schedule based 

10 on what the t i m i n g t o a l l t h a t i s or we move f o r w a r d 

11 so t h a t we can meet t h e h e a r i n g schedule t h a t we 

12 d e v i s e a t t h e i r behest today. I don't see how they 

13 can have i t b o t h ways. I would l i k e t o have c l a r i t y 

14 on whether d i s c o v e r y i s g o i n g t o be answered w i t h i n a 

15 reasonable p e r i o d o f time, t h a t b e i n g i t was 

16 promulgated on --

17 MR. SNISCAK: I can c e r t a i n l y r e p r e s e n t 

18 you'11 have a l l answers by c l o s e o f d i s c o v e r y . 

19 MS. KNIGHT: Your Honor, t h a t ' s t h e game 

20 p l a n a t t h i s p o i n t . My d i s c o v e r y was sent out i n 

21 e a r l y October. Now, he's t e l l i n g me I have t o w a i t 

22 t h r e e months t o get t h e answers. I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s 

23 a p p r o p r i a t e --

24 MR. SNISCAK: I d i d n ' t say t h r e e months. 

25 I'm g o i n g t o go back and r e v i s i t what we might be a b l e 
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1 t o g e t o u t . That's t h e o n l y t h i n g I can do. 

2 C e r t a i n l y you're not g o i n g t o get them b e f o r e 

3 T h a n k s g i v i n g . W e ' l l l o o k a t what we have and see 

4 whether we're a b l e t o g i v e you some o f i t . 

5 MS. KNIGHT: Are you g o i n g t o w i t h d r a w 

6 some o f your o b j e c t i o n s t o d i s c o v e r y i f I w i t h d r a w t h e 

7 q u e s t i o n t h a t you f i n d most o b j e c t i o n a b l e ? 

8 MR. SNISCAK: F i r s t o f a l l , we don't 

9 t h i n k you have any r i g h t s i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g because 

10 you l a c k s t a n d i n g . But what I'm s a y i n g i s w e ' l l go 

11 back and I ca n ' t g i v e you an answer on t i m i n g on these 

12 t h i n g s . I ' l l have t o speak w i t h t h e v a r i o u s people 

13 who would be answering these t o see what t h e y can 

14 answer and when t h e y can answer i t . That's t h e b e s t I 

15 can do a t t h i s p o i n t . I ' l l t r y t o g e t t h a t process 

16 completed by say Thursday i f I can 

17 MS. KNIGHT: That's T h a n k s g i v i n g . You 

18 don't want t o say t h a t . 

19 MR. SNISCAK: W e l l , b e f o r e . But i n the 

20 a b s t r a c t I t h i n k t h a t ' s t h e f i r s t s t e p . L e t us see 

21 how l o n g i t t a k e s t o get you some o f t h i s s t u f f . 

22 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: So by next 

23 Monday she s h o u l d have an answer from you as t o what 

24 you can g i v e her --

25 MR. SNISCAK: R i g h t and when. 
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1 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: -- and by what 

2 time period. 

3 MS. KNIGHT: That w i l l be at l e a s t a step 

4 i n the r i g h t d i r e c t i o n . 

5 The second outstanding issue, your Honor, 

6 there were representations made i n the prehearing 

7 n o t i c e t h a t there have been changes made t o the 

8 a p p l i c a t i o n which, you know, he's going up and l o o k i n g 

9 at the f i l e we know about. I do p r i n t out the 

10 Commission's d a i l y l o g sheet and i f there were changes 

11 made t o the a p p l i c a t i o n , I'm not r e c e i v i n g amendments 

12 nor do I see on the l o g sheet any such amendment to 

13 the a p p l i c a t i o n . So i f they --

14 I don't spend a l l my time at the 

15 Commission l o o k i n g through f i l e s . I do check the l o g 

16 sheet t o see i f anything happened. There's nothing 

17 noted on t h i s l o g sheet about an amendment to the 

18 a p p l i c a t i o n . So I j u s t ask f o r a c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

19 MR. SNISCAK: Again we f i l e d t h i s 

20 document on September 14, 2005 w i t h you and I ' l l give 

21 a copy t o Your Honor as w e l l as to counsel. I f we 

22 hadn't had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o look through the e n t i r e 

23 f i l e --

24 MS. KNIGHT: As I said, I looked through 

25 the l o g sheet t o see i f there was anything --
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1 MR. SNISCAK: Well, i t ' s not the f i l e . 

2 MS. KNIGHT: But nothing was logged i n . 

3 That's a l l I'm saying. 

4 MR. SNISCAK: Well, the f a c t i s or you 

5 know OCA contacted us and asked f o r some 

6 c l a r i f i c a t i o n s . We made those c l a r i f i c a t i o n s and 

7 they 1 re a l l , as f a r as we see i t , c onsistent w i t h our 

8 a p p l i c a t i o n . And I t h i n k t o disconnect i f there was 

9 any i s you make c e r t a i n assumptions based upon an 

10 e a r l i e r business plan. And I'm sure i f we p u l l 

11 Superior's o r i g i n a l business plan from whenever they 

12 f i l e d i t , i t would be i n the e a r l y 90s th a t there 

13 would be things t h a t would be -- t h a t they're doing 

14 today t h a t are a l i t t l e b i t d i f f e r e n t from t h a t 

15 r e f l e c t e d i n th a t p l an. So our plan when we say we're 

16 going t o meter customers and have them pay the t a r i f f , 

17 t h a t ' s p r e c i s e l y what we mean. When we say we're 

18 going t o be a p u b l i c u t i l i t y , t h a t ' s what we mean. 

19 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Thank you f o r 

20 t h a t c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

21 Mr. Sniscak, do you have any outstanding 

22 issues? 

2 3 MR. SNISCAK: No, I don't, Your Honor. 

24 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I believe we 

25 have addressed the items t h a t I have o u t l i n e d i n my 
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1 prehearing order and the issues t h a t have been r a i s e d 

2 by both p a r t i e s . I would l i k e t o thank the p a r t i e s 

3 f o r t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n and t h e i r desire t o cooperate 

4 i n t h i s matter i n terms of dealing w i t h some of the 

5 motions so t h a t I won't have t o w r i t e an order f o r 

6 each t h i n g , and t h a t we can have a conference c a l l i f 

7 i t ' s necessary to do so. 

8 Thank you. 

9 MS. KNIGHT: Thank you. 

10 MR. SNISCAK: Your Honor, I j u s t want t o 

1 1 c l a r i f y something. I c e r t a i n l y wanted to make i t 

12 clea r t h a t i t very w e l l may be th a t t h i s l e t t e r wasn't 

13 r e f l e c t e d i n the Commissions' punch l i s t t h a t 

14 Ms. Knight would have looked a t . I'11 go back and 

15 double-check t o see. There's a p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t t h i s 

16 was f i l e d d i r e c t l y w i t h s t a f f because at t h a t j u n c t u r e 

17 of the proceedings t h i s case was proceeding under 

18 what's c a l l e d modified procedure which means t h a t i t 

19 would have been w i t h DFUS and th a t i n f o r m a t i o n would 

20 have been given to them. I ' l l have t o c i r c l e back and 

21 double-check back and make sure t h a t was i n the f i l e 

22 which again i t i s our i n t e n t i o n t o f i l e i t . 

23 I do r e c a l l seeing i t stamped and copied. 

24 1 111 have t o go back and double-check on t h a t . But 

2 5 anyway --

o 
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1 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I b e l i e v e t h a t --

2 MR. SNISCAK: -- t h i s document does 

3 r e f l e c t and c l a r i f y any a m b i g u i t y o r c o n f u s i o n between 

4 t h e DEP busines s p l a n and what we proposed i n our 

5 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

6 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: I do b e l i e v e 

7 t h a t t h a t ' s p r o b a b l y what happened t h a t i t was f i l e d 

8 w i t h s t a f f . I don't remember s e e i n g a copy o f t h a t i n 

9 the documents t h a t were p r o v i d e d t o me. 

10 MR. SNISCAK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

11 Again I a p o l o g i z e t o Ms. K n i g h t f o r any 

1 2 s u g g e s t i o n t o you t h a t you d i d not l o o k t h r o u g h t h e 

13 f i l e . I know she does those t h i n g s . 

14 MS. KNIGHT: Apology accepted. Thank you 

15 f o r t h a t c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

16 JUDGE WILLIAMS-FORDHAM: Thank you. 

17 MR. SNISCAK: Thank you. 

18 MS. KNIGHT: Thank you. 

19 - - -

20 (Whereupon t h e h e a r i n g was concluded 

21 a t 10:55 a.m.) 

22 - - -

23 

24 

25 

o 
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